
1

COUNCIL SUMMONS

To Members of the Metropolitan Borough Council

Dear Councillor

You are requested to attend a Meeting of the Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council to 

be held on Thursday 19th September, 2019 at 6.30 pm at the Town Hall, Bootle to 

transact the business set out on the agenda overleaf.

Yours sincerely,

Chief Executive

Town Hall,
Southport

Wednesday 11 September 2019

Please contact Ruth Harrison,Democratic Services Manager 
on 0151 934 2046 or e-mail ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

We endeavour to provide a reasonable number of full agendas, including reports at 
the meeting.  If you wish to ensure that you have a copy to refer to at the meeting, 
please can you print off your own copy of the agenda pack prior to the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

1.  Apologies for Absence

2.  Declarations of Interest
Members are requested to give notice of any disclosable 
pecuniary or personal interest.

An advice note on declarations of interests is attached.

(Pages 5 - 6)

3.  Minutes of Previous Meeting
Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2019

(Pages 7 - 24)

4.  Mayor's Communications

Public Session

5.  Matters Raised by the Public
To deal with matters raised by members of the public 
resident within the Borough, of which notice has been given 
in accordance with the procedures relating to public 
questions, motions or petitions set out in Paragraph 36 to 47 
of the Council and Committee Procedure Rules in Chapter 4 
of the Council Constitution.

(Details of any further petitions notified or questions 
submitted by members of the public will be circulated at the 
meeting).

Council Business Session

6.  Questions Raised by Members of the Council
To receive and consider questions to Cabinet Members, 
Chairs of Committees or Spokespersons for any of the Joint 
Authorities upon any matter within their portfolio/area of 
responsibility, of which notice has been given by Members of 
the Council in accordance with Paragraph 49 to 51 of the 
Council and Committee Procedure Rules, set out in Chapter 
4 of the Council Constitution.

7.  Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury 
Management Outturn 2018/19
Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

(Pages 25 - 
38)

8.  Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - Revised 
Capital Allocations
Report of the Head of Corporate Resources

(Pages 39 - 
44)



4

9.  Local Government Act 1972 – Section 85 - Attendance at 
Meetings
Report of the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer

(Pages 45 - 
48)

10.  Membership of Committees 2019/20
To consider any changes to the Membership of any 
committees etc.

11.  Matters dealt with in accordance with Rule 29 (Special 
Urgency) and Rule 46 (Waiving Call-In) of the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution
Report of the Leader of Council.

(Pages 49 - 
50)

12.  Motion submitted by Councillor Pugh - Brexit (Pages 51 - 
52)

13.  Motion submitted by Councillor Halsall - NJC Pay to 
Council

(Pages 53 - 
54)

14.  Motion submitted by Councillor Byrom - Merseyside Fire 
and Rescue Authority

(Pages 55 - 
56)

15.  Motion submitted by Councillor Carragher - Dog Poop - 
A Public Hazard

(Pages 57 - 
58)

16.  Motion Submitted by Councillor Brough - Questions on 
Notice at Full Council

(Pages 59 - 
60)

17.  Motion Submitted by Councillor Sir Ron Watson CBE - 
Democratic Changes to Council Procedures and 
Constitution

(Pages 61 - 
64)



Declarations of Interest

Members are requested at a meeting where a disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 
interest arises, which is not already included in their Register of Members' Interests, to 
declare any interests that relate to an item on the agenda.

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation.

Where a Member discloses a personal interest he/she must seek advice from the 
Monitoring Officer or staff member representing the Monitoring Officer to determine 
whether the Member should withdraw from the meeting room, including from the public 
gallery, during the whole consideration of any item of business in which he/she has an 
interest or whether the Member can remain in the meeting or remain in the meeting and 
vote on the relevant decision.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



THIS SET OF MINUTES IS NOT SUBJECT TO “CALL-IN”

17

COUNCIL

MEETING HELD AT THE TOWN HALL, SOUTHPORT
ON THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

PRESENT: The Mayor (Councillor Burns) in the Chair
The Deputy Chair (Councillor Robinson) Vice Chair
Councillors Blackburne, Bradshaw, Brennan, 
Brough, Byrom, Carr, Carragher, Cummins, 
Dawson, Dodd, Dowd, Doyle, Dutton, Evans, 
Fairclough, Friel, Grace, Halsall, Howard, Irving, 
Jones, Keith, John Kelly, John Joseph Kelly, Killen, 
Lappin, Maher, McCann, McGinnity, McKinley, 
Moncur, Murphy, Myers, Brenda O'Brien, 
Michael O'Brien, O'Hanlon, Pitt, Pugh, Roche, 
Roscoe, John Sayers, Yvonne Sayers, Shaw, 
Anne Thompson, Tweed, Waterfield and 
Sir Ron Watson

18. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Atkinson, Bennett, 
Brodie-Browne, Cluskey, Gannon, Hands, Hardy, Lewis, Marshall, Morris, 
Pullin, Sathiy, Spencer, Thomas, Lynne Thompson, Veidman and 
Webster.

19. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary or personal interests were 
received.

20. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Council Meetings held on 14 and 16 May 2019 be 
approved as a correct record.

21. MAYOR'S COMMUNICATIONS 

Former Councillor Tom Glover

The Mayor reported on the sad news that former Councillor Tom Glover 
had passed away on 9 June 2019.  It was reported that the late Councillor 
Tom Glover had served as a Councillor for 50 years both on Southport 
Borough Council and subsequently Sefton Council from 1973 to 2012.  It 
was also reported that Councillor Tom Glover had been Leader of both 
Councils between 1971 and 1981.

Councillors Sir Ron Watson, Brough, Pugh and Maher paid tribute to 
former Councillor Tom Glover.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

18

Former Councillor Kevin Cluskey

The Mayor also reported on the sad news that former Councillor Kevin 
Cluskey had passed away on 27 June 2019.  Councillor Cluskey had 
served Litherland Ward from May 1986 to May 2000 and then Ford Ward 
from May 2000 until May 2018.  Councillor Cluskey was also Mayor of 
Sefton on three separate occasions in 2002-2003, 2012-2013 and 2014-
2015.

Councillors Pugh, Maher, Brennan, Brough, Sir Ron Watson, Michael 
O’Brien, Fairclough, McKinley and Byrom paid tribute to former Councillor 
Kevin Cluskey.  

The Council stood in silence for one Minute as a mark of respect to both 
former Councillors Kevin Cluskey and Tom Glover.

Trip to Gdansk

The Mayor reported on her recent visit to Gdansk to celebrate the 30th 
Anniversary of partially free elections in Poland celebrated on 4 June 
2019.

22. MATTERS RAISED BY THE PUBLIC 

The Mayor reported that no matters had been raised by members of the 
public.

23. QUESTIONS RAISED BY MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL 

The Council considered a schedule setting out the written questions 
submitted by:

1. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

2. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

3. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

4. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

5. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

6. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

19

7. Question submitted by Councillor Brough to the Cabinet Member for 
Communities and Housing (Councillor Hardy)

8. Question submitted by Councillor Brough to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

9. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

10. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

11. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

12. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

13. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

14. Question submitted by Councillor Watson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

15. Question submitted by Councillor Pugh to the Cabinet Member for 
Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services (Councillor 
Lappin)

16. Question submitted by Councillor Pugh to the Cabinet Member for 
Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

17. Question submitted by Councillor Pugh to the Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Fairclough)

18. Question submitted by Councillor Pugh to the Cabinet Member for 
Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

19. Question submitted by Councillor Halsall to the Cabinet Member for 
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Councillor John Joseph 
Kelly)

20. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services (Councillor 
Lappin)

21. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Skills (Councillor Atkinson)

22. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member 
for Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

20

23. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member 
for Locality Services (Councillor Fairclough)

24. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Cabinet Member 
for Planning and Building Control (Councillor Veidman)

25. Question submitted by Councillor Dawson to the Leader of the 
Council (Councillor Maher)

together with the responses given. Supplementary questions to questions 
6, 19 and 20 were responded to by the Leader of the Council and Cabinet 
Members for Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services and 
Children’s Services and Safeguarding.

24. PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT 

The Council considered the report of the Director of Public Health 
regarding the Public Health Annual Report which had been produced as a 
short film to explore air quality in Sefton.

It was moved by Councillor Maher, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and 

RESOLVED:

That the Council note the Public Health Annual Report 2018/19.

25. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19 

The Council considered the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report for 
2018/19 and Councillors Doyle, Murphy, John Sayers and Bradshaw 
highlighted the key areas of work undertaken by the respective 
Committees and thanked Members and Officers for their support and 
assistance during 2018/19.

It was moved by Councillor Michael O’Brien, seconded by Councillor 
Byrom and

RESOLVED:

That the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2018/19 be noted.

26. DESIGNATION OF THE COUNCIL'S STATUTORY SCRUTINY 
OFFICER 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources in 
relation to the appointment of the Democratic Services Manager as 
Sefton’s Statutory Scrutiny Officer.

It was moved by Councillor Lappin, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and

RESOLVED: That:

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

21

(1) the Democratic Services Manager be designated as the Council’s 
Statutory Officer; and

(2) the necessary amendments to the Constitution be undertaken to 
reflect the designation of the Democratic Services Manager as the 
Council’s Statutory Scrutiny Officer.

27. SCHEME OF MEMBERS ALLOWANCES 2019/20 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources in 
relation to the Scheme of Members Allowances for 2019/2020.

The Mayor drew Members’ attention to recommendation 1 (c) and page 
107 of the Agenda and confirmed that the amount of Special 
Responsibility Allowance paid to Opposition Group Leaders with 10 
Members or more for 2019/2020 should be £4,666.85 and not £4,575.35. 

It was moved by Councillor Lappin, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and

RESOLVED: That 

(1) having taken Sefton Council’s current economic circumstances into 
account, the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel as detailed in (a) to (c) below be approved:

(a) the Members Allowance Scheme remain as it is, subject to 
(c) below;

(b) payments under the Members Allowance Scheme be 
increased in accordance with the Local Government Pay 
Settlement each year, for a period of 4 years, commencing 
2019/20, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report; and

(c) the Special Responsibility Allowances paid to opposition 
party group leaders be amended so that any group leader 
with 10 or more Members receive the full allowance and 
any group with less than 10 Members receive one tenth of 
that allowance for each Member in the group;

(2) the decision of the Independent Remuneration Panel and the 
Council at their meetings held on 7 and 21 September 2017 
respectively agreeing the principal that Basic Allowances and 
Special Responsibility Allowances be paid to Sefton Members 
sitting on the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority Transport 
Committee, as detailed in paragraph 2.2 of the report, be reaffirmed;  

(3) as soon as practicably possible, the scheme of Members 
Allowances for Sefton be published in the newspaper group “The 
Champion”; and

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

22

(4) the Constitution be amended to include the agreed Scheme of 
Allowances for 2019/20.

28. AMENDMENTS TO THE CONSTITUTION 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
that detailed various proposals to amend the Council’s Constitution in 
relation to:

 Policy Framework (Paragraph 2.2);
 General Constitution Update (Paragraph 3.2);
 Health and Safety (Paragraph 4.2);
 ICT Acceptable Use Policy for Members (Paragraph 5.2);
 Response to Consultations by NHS Bodies (Paragraph 6.4);
 Community Governance Reviews (Paragraph 7.9); and 
 Data Protection Officer (Paragraph 8.2).

It was moved by Councillor Robinson, seconded by Councillor Fairclough 
and

RESOLVED: 

That the amendments to the Council’s Constitution as set out in 
Paragraphs 2.2, 3.2, 4.2, 5.2, 6.4, 7.9 and 8.2 of the report, be approved.

29. LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 – SECTION 85 - 
ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS – COUNCILLOR VERONICA 
WEBSTER 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources 
which requested the Council to approve and authorise the absence of 
Councillor Veronica Webster from attendance at Council and Committee 
Meetings pursuant to Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972.

It was moved by Councillor Maher, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and 

RESOLVED:

That the current absence from all Council and Committee Meetings of 
Councillor Veronica Webster due to ill-health be authorised and approved 
for the period until the scheduled meeting of the Council to take place on 
23 January 2020, pursuant to Section 85 of the Local Government Act 
1972. 
 
30. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT TO THORNTON PARISH 

COUNCIL 

The Council considered the report of the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer in relation to the temporary appointment to Thornton Parish 
Council.

Page 12

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

23

It was moved by Councillor Lappin, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and

RESOLVED: That:

(1) Councillor John Joseph Kelly be appointed under Section 91 (1) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 to Thornton Parish Council to make 
it quorate, unless or until either sufficient vacancies on Thornton 
Parish Council have been filled by way of co-option or election such 
that Thornton Parish Council is able to act lawfully, or the Order 
made under Section 91(1) is revoked, be approved; 

(2) In the event of Sefton Metropolitan Borough Council receiving any 
further requests from Town or Parish Councils which have become 
inquorate, the Returning Officer be authorised to make 
appointments to those Town or Parish Councils in accordance with 
the procedure set out in Appendix 1 to the report, and to report any 
such appointments to the next available meeting of the Council; and 

(3) the Chief Legal and Democratic Officer be granted delegated 
authority to make an Order under Section 91 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 to give effect to resolutions (1) and (2) 
above, as and when appropriate.

31. MEMBERSHIP - HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

The Council considered the report of the Head of Corporate Resources in 
relation to membership changes to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

The report detailed proposals to appoint the interim Director for Adult 
Social Care and the interim Director for Children’s Services as Members to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board and to remove the position of Director of 
Social Care and Health as a Member.

It was moved by Councillor Lappin, seconded by Councillor Fairclough and

RESOLVED: That:

(1) the appointments of the interim Director for Adult Social Care and 
the interim Director for Children’s Services as Members of Health 
and Wellbeing Board, be approved; and

(2) the deletion of the Director of Social Care and Health from the 
membership of the Health and Wellbeing Board, be approved.

32. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES 2019/20 

No changes to the membership of Committees were made.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

24

33. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR LAPPIN - CLIMATE 
CHANGE EMERGENCY 

It was moved by Councillor Lappin, seconded by Councillor Moncur:

Climate Change Emergency
Recent extreme weather events over several years have presented severe 
challenges to property, transport, agriculture and other services in the 
Sefton area and have led to the deaths and displacement of thousands of 
people worldwide. The Meteorological Office clearly states that these kind 
of extreme weather events are significantly more likely on a planet with 
human-caused climate change.

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) is the United 
Nations body for assessing the science related to climate change. In their 
report “Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 1.5C report”[1], 
published in October 2018, they conclude that humanity has 11 years for 
“ambitious action from national and sub-national authorities, civil society, 
the private sector, indigenous peoples and local communities” to deliver 
the “rapid and far reaching transitions in land, energy, industry, buildings, 
transport, and cities” needed to turn this around, so we can avoid reaching 
tipping points where we would no longer have the ability to avoid extreme 
weather events.

Business as usual is no longer an option.

Children in Sefton will be in their teens and twenties in 11 years’ time. 
They deserve a liveable Sefton. We must act now to ensure this.

Bold climate action can deliver economic benefits in terms of new jobs, 
economic savings and market opportunities, as well as improved well-
being for people locally and worldwide.

Over 40, and increasing, local councils, together with the Mayor of 
London, have passed motions declaring a ‘Climate Emergency’. Many 
local authorities, including Sefton Council, have also signed up to the 
UK100 Agreement[2], pledging to achieve 100% ‘clean energy’ usage by 
2050 in their area, but the IPCC report shows it is imperative that this 
target is reached much, much sooner.

Sefton Council is committed to reducing carbon emissions and resolves to 
go further than the UK100 Agreement and to act in line with the scientific 
consensus that we must reduce emissions to net zero by 2030, and 
therefore commits to:

Declare a ‘Climate Emergency’ that requires urgent action.

Make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon by 2030.

Commit to municipalisation of energy supply by utilising public sector sites 
to generate energy where appropriate

Ensure that all strategic decisions are in line with a shift to zero carbon by 
2030.

Page 14

Agenda Item 3

https://climateemergency.uk/blog/preston/#post-47514-footnote-1
https://climateemergency.uk/blog/preston/#post-47514-footnote-2


COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

25

Support and work with all other relevant agencies towards making the 
Sefton area Zero Carbon within the same timescale.

Achieve 100% clean energy across Sefton Council’s full range of functions 
by 2030.

Convene an assembly of interested groups not directly represented on 
Council in 2020 to oversee and feed into the development of related action 
plans and budgets across the Borough.

And to take the following actions:

1. Ensure that political groups and Strategic Leadership Board embed 
this work in all areas of Council activity and take responsibility for 
reducing, as rapidly as possible, the carbon emissions resulting 
from the Council’s activities, ensuring that any recommendations 
are fully costed and that a Task and Finish group be established to 
review Council activities taking account of production and 
consumption emissions and produce an action plan within 12 
months, together with budget actions and a measured baseline;

2. Request that Overview and Scrutiny Management Board consider 
the impact of climate change and the environment when reviewing 
Council policies and strategies and charge Task and Finish groups 
to also consider those impacts in any report and every topic;

3. Work with, influence and inspire partners across the Borough and 
City Region to help deliver this goal through relevant strategies, 
plans and shared resources by developing a series of meetings, 
events and partner workshops;

4. Set up a Sefton Climate Change group, drawing on the expertise 
from Councillors, local communities, residents, young citizens, 
climate science and solutions experts, businesses, skills providers, 
and other relevant parties. Over the following 12 months, the Group 
will consider strategies and actions being developed by the Council 
and other partner organisations and develop a Borough-wide 
strategy in line with a target of net zero emissions by 2030, by 
engaging with other anchor institutions and small and medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs). It will also recommend ways to maximise the 
local benefits of these actions in other sectors such as employment, 
health, agriculture, transport and the economy;

5. Request that the Council and partners take steps to proactively 
include young people in the process, ensuring that they have a 
voice in shaping the future-their future;

6. Review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy to give due 
consideration to climate change targets in the investment decision 
making process and in doing so request a report within 6 months 
from the Head of Corporate Resources on the investment strategies 

Page 15

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

26

of all financial institutions where Council funds are or could be held;

7. Ensure that all reports in preparation for the 2020/21 budget cycle 
will take into account the actions the Council will take to address 
this emergency;

8. Add the voice of Sefton Council to the calls on the UK Government 
to provide the powers, resources and help with funding to make this 
possible;

9. In recognition of the seriousness of the financial constraints that the 
Council faces, and the expectation that both the development and 
implementation of many measures above are likely to be contingent 
on securing significant additional extra funding, that Sefton’s local 
MPs be called upon to ensure that Central government provides the 
powers, resources and funding to make this possible, and that the 
Leader and Chief Executive jointly write to them to seek their 
commitments;

10. Consider other actions that could be recommended (but are not 
restricted to): low carbon energy production and storage, providing 
electric vehicle infrastructure, encouraging the use of electric 
vehicles within the fleet, workforce and wider community, integrating 
low carbon technologies into operational assets and projects, 
increasing the efficiency of buildings, prioritising these measures for 
housing to address fuel poverty; proactively using our powers to 
accelerate the delivery of net carbon new developments and 
communities, coordinating a series of information and training 
events to raise awareness and share good practice;

11. Where needed, officer reports to the Council, Cabinet and all other 
Committees contain impact assessments on climate change that 
include carbon emission appraisals, including presenting alternative 
approaches which reduce carbon emissions where possible; and

12. Note the Liverpool City Region Deal which will have a direct effect 
on Sefton’s climate and ensure that all partners are aware of 
Sefton’s ambition.

An amendment was moved by Councillor Pitt, seconded by Councillor Sir 
Ron Watson that:

the following sentence in the preamble of the Motion

“Commit to municipalisation of energy supply by utilising public sector sites 
to generate energy where appropriate”

be replaced with the sentence:

Page 16

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

27

“Commit to localised technology solutions to increase energy supply by 
utilising public sector sites to generate energy where appropriate”

Following debate, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the 
amendment was lost by 43 votes to 5.

Thereafter, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the Motion was 
carried unanimously and it was  

RESOLVED: That

Climate Change Emergency
Recent extreme weather events over several years have presented severe 
challenges to property, transport, agriculture and other services in the 
Sefton area and have led to the deaths and displacement of thousands of 
people worldwide. The Meteorological Office clearly states that these kind 
of extreme weather events are significantly more likely on a planet with 
human-caused climate change.

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) is the United 
Nations body for assessing the science related to climate change. In their 
report “Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change 1.5C report”[1], 
published in October 2018, they conclude that humanity has 11 years for 
“ambitious action from national and sub-national authorities, civil society, 
the private sector, indigenous peoples and local communities” to deliver 
the “rapid and far reaching transitions in land, energy, industry, buildings, 
transport, and cities” needed to turn this around, so we can avoid reaching 
tipping points where we would no longer have the ability to avoid extreme 
weather events.

Business as usual is no longer an option.

Children in Sefton will be in their teens and twenties in 11 years’ time. 
They deserve a liveable Sefton. We must act now to ensure this.

Bold climate action can deliver economic benefits in terms of new jobs, 
economic savings and market opportunities, as well as improved well-
being for people locally and worldwide.

Over 40, and increasing, local councils, together with the Mayor of 
London, have passed motions declaring a ‘Climate Emergency’. Many 
local authorities, including Sefton Council, have also signed up to the 
UK100 Agreement[2], pledging to achieve 100% ‘clean energy’ usage by 
2050 in their area, but the IPCC report shows it is imperative that this 
target is reached much, much sooner.

Sefton Council is committed to reducing carbon emissions and resolves to 
go further than the UK100 Agreement and to act in line with the scientific 
consensus that we must reduce emissions to net zero by 2030, and 
therefore commits to:

Declare a ‘Climate Emergency’ that requires urgent action.

Page 17

Agenda Item 3

https://climateemergency.uk/blog/preston/#post-47514-footnote-1
https://climateemergency.uk/blog/preston/#post-47514-footnote-2


COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

28

Make the Council’s activities net-zero carbon by 2030.

Commit to municipalisation of energy supply by utilising public sector sites 
to generate energy where appropriate

Ensure that all strategic decisions are in line with a shift to zero carbon by 
2030.

Support and work with all other relevant agencies towards making the 
Sefton area Zero Carbon within the same timescale.

Achieve 100% clean energy across Sefton Council’s full range of functions 
by 2030.

Convene an assembly of interested groups not directly represented on 
Council in 2020 to oversee and feed into the development of related action 
plans and budgets across the Borough.

And to take the following actions:

1. Ensure that political groups and Strategic Leadership Board embed 
this work in all areas of Council activity and take responsibility for 
reducing, as rapidly as possible, the carbon emissions resulting 
from the Council’s activities, ensuring that any recommendations 
are fully costed and that a Task and Finish group be established to 
review Council activities taking account of production and 
consumption emissions and produce an action plan within 12 
months, together with budget actions and a measured baseline;

2. Request that Overview and Scrutiny Management Board consider 
the impact of climate change and the environment when reviewing 
Council policies and strategies and charge Task and Finish groups 
to also consider those impacts in any report and every topic;

3. Work with, influence and inspire partners across the Borough and 
City Region to help deliver this goal through relevant strategies, 
plans and shared resources by developing a series of meetings, 
events and partner workshops;

4. Set up a Sefton Climate Change group, drawing on the expertise 
from Councillors, local communities, residents, young citizens, 
climate science and solutions experts, businesses, skills providers, 
and other relevant parties. Over the following 12 months, the Group 
will consider strategies and actions being developed by the Council 
and other partner organisations and develop a Borough-wide 
strategy in line with a target of net zero emissions by 2030, by 
engaging with other anchor institutions and small and medium-sized 
enterprises (SMEs). It will also recommend ways to maximise the 
local benefits of these actions in other sectors such as employment, 
health, agriculture, transport and the economy;

Page 18

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

29

5. Request that the Council and partners take steps to proactively 
include young people in the process, ensuring that they have a 
voice in shaping the future-their future;

6. Review the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy to give due 
consideration to climate change targets in the investment decision 
making process and in doing so request a report within 6 months 
from the Head of Corporate Resources on the investment strategies 
of all financial institutions where Council funds are or could be held;

7. Ensure that all reports in preparation for the 2020/21 budget cycle 
will take into account the actions the Council will take to address 
this emergency;

8. Add the voice of Sefton Council to the calls on the UK Government 
to provide the powers, resources and help with funding to make this 
possible;

9. In recognition of the seriousness of the financial constraints that the 
Council faces, and the expectation that both the development and 
implementation of many measures above are likely to be contingent 
on securing significant additional extra funding, that Sefton’s local 
MPs be called upon to ensure that Central government provides the 
powers, resources and funding to make this possible, and that the 
Leader and Chief Executive jointly write to them to seek their 
commitments;

10. Consider other actions that could be recommended (but are not 
restricted to): low carbon energy production and storage, providing 
electric vehicle infrastructure, encouraging the use of electric 
vehicles within the fleet, workforce and wider community, integrating 
low carbon technologies into operational assets and projects, 
increasing the efficiency of buildings, prioritising these measures for 
housing to address fuel poverty; proactively using our powers to 
accelerate the delivery of net carbon new developments and 
communities, coordinating a series of information and training 
events to raise awareness and share good practice;

11. Where needed, officer reports to the Council, Cabinet and all other 
Committees contain impact assessments on climate change that 
include carbon emission appraisals, including presenting alternative 
approaches which reduce carbon emissions where possible; and

12. Note the Liverpool City Region Deal which will have a direct effect 
on Sefton’s climate and ensure that all partners are aware of 
Sefton’s ambition.

Page 19

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

30

34. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR MAHER - TO ADOPT 
PARENTAL LEAVE 

It was moved by Councillor Maher, seconded by Councillor Howard and 
following debate it was unanimously

RESOLVED:

To Adopt Parental Leave

That this Council notes:

 That analysis of the 2018 Local Election results by the Fawcett 
Society found that only 34% of councillors in England are women, 
up 1% since 2017. Of the seats that were up for election in 2018, 
38% went to women, up just 3 percentage points on 2014 when 
these seats were last contested;

 That across England, Labour has improved its representation since 
seats were last up for grabs, with 45% women compared with 40% 
in 2014, Liberal Democrat representation up from 34% to 36% 
whilst the Conservative Party saw a fall from 31% to 29% in the 
share of its councillors who are female;

 As of summer 2017, only 4% of councils in England and Wales 
have parental leave policies, according to research by the Fawcett 
Society;

 That the role of a councillor should be open to all, regardless of 
their background, and that introducing a parental leave policy is a 
step towards encouraging a wider range of people to become 
councillors, and is also a step to encourage existing councillors who 
may want to start a family to remain as councillors;

 That parental leave must apply to parents regardless of their 
gender, and that it should also cover adoption leave to support 
those parents who choose to adopt.

This Council resolves:  

 To adopt a parental leave policy, as per the attached indicative 
policy, to give all councillors an entitlement to parental leave after 
giving birth or adopting but noting the implementation of a policy will 
be subject to the Independent Remuneration Panel considering the 
implications and reporting back to Council; 

 To ensure that councillors with children and other caring 
commitments are supported as appropriate; and 

 To notify the LGA (Local Government Association) that this Council 
has passed a motion at Full Council to adopt a parental leave 
policy.

Page 20

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

31

35. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR O'HANLON - 
INDEPENDENT AGE'S CALL FOR THE INTRODUCTION OF 
FREE PERSONAL CARE FOR ALL OLDER PEOPLE IN 
ENGLAND 

It was moved by Councillor O’Hanlon, seconded by Councillor Irving:

Independent Age’s call for the Introduction of Free Personal Care for 
all Older People in England

Sefton Council notes that over a million older people in England are 
struggling with unmet care needs and believes that in light of an ageing 
population we need bold changes to deliver a long-term funding solution 
for social care. 

The Council believes that it is fundamentally unfair that to access basic 
care many older people face catastrophic costs that can run into hundreds 
of thousands of pounds, wipe out a lifetime of savings, and force families 
to sell their homes. 

The Council also believes that England’s care system needs major reform 
to provide a long-term sustainable funding solution and to make care free 
at the point of use. 

The Council therefore supports Independent Age’s call for the introduction 
of free personal care for all older people in England, alongside a new 
social care contribution to fully fund the policy on a sustainable basis. 

The Council calls on the Government to take the necessary steps to 
implement this policy as swiftly as possible to end the care crisis and 
properly support older people in Sefton Metropolitan Borough. 

The Council also calls on our local MPs to support the campaign for free 
personal care, and to speak up in favour of the policy in the House of 
Commons and through their wider engagements.

Following debate, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the Motion 
was carried by 40 votes to 0 with 5 abstentions and it was 

RESOLVED:

Independent Age’s call for the Introduction of Free Personal Care for 
all Older People in England

Sefton Council notes that over a million older people in England are 
struggling with unmet care needs and believes that in light of an ageing 
population we need bold changes to deliver a long-term funding solution 
for social care. 

The Council believes that it is fundamentally unfair that to access basic 
care many older people face catastrophic costs that can run into hundreds 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

32

of thousands of pounds, wipe out a lifetime of savings, and force families 
to sell their homes. 

The Council also believes that England’s care system needs major reform 
to provide a long-term sustainable funding solution and to make care free 
at the point of use. 

The Council therefore supports Independent Age’s call for the introduction 
of free personal care for all older people in England, alongside a new 
social care contribution to fully fund the policy on a sustainable basis. 

The Council calls on the Government to take the necessary steps to 
implement this policy as swiftly as possible to end the care crisis and 
properly support older people in Sefton Metropolitan Borough. 

The Council also calls on our local MPs to support the campaign for free 
personal care, and to speak up in favour of the policy in the House of 
Commons and through their wider engagements.

36. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR MCCANN - STUNNING 
OF ANIMALS PRIOR TO SLAUGHTER 

The Mayor advised the Council that Councillor McCann had now 
withdrawn his Motion.

37. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR PUGH - SPECIAL 
EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITY SERVICE 

It was moved by Councillor Pugh, seconded by Councillor Keith

Special Educational Needs and Disability Service

That this Council notes with regret the adverse reports from Ofsted and 
the CQC on its SEND provision and is determined to effectively address 
the issues concerned.

An amendment was moved by Councillor John Joseph Kelly, seconded 
by Councillor Moncur that the Motion be amended to read:

That this Council notes with regret the adverse reports from Ofsted and 
the CQC on its SEND provision but notes that the Inspection identified 
significant improvements in schools, how the council provides specialist 
transport, and engages with young people and confirmed some of the 
concerns about the delivery of SEND services by health providers that had 
been raised by Elected Members at Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Children's Services and Safeguarding), Corporate Parenting, and Health 
and Wellbeing Boards.

The Council notes the apology made by health leaders to all stakeholders 
as a result of the findings from this inspection. The Council welcomes the 
promise of new investment that has already been put in place.

Page 22

Agenda Item 3



COUNCIL- THURSDAY 18TH JULY, 2019

33

The Council is determined to effectively address the issues concerned.

Following debate, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the 
amendment was carried unanimously.

Thereafter, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the Substantive 
Motion was carried unanimously and it was  

RESOLVED: That

This Council notes with regret the adverse reports from Ofsted and the 
CQC on its SEND provision but notes that the Inspection identified 
significant improvements in schools, how the council provides specialist 
transport, and engages with young people and confirmed some of the 
concerns about the delivery of SEND services by health providers that had 
been raised by Elected Members at Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(Children's Services and Safeguarding), Corporate Parenting, and Health 
and Wellbeing Boards.

The Council notes the apology made by health leaders to all stakeholders 
as a result of the findings from this inspection. The Council welcomes the 
promise of new investment that has already been put in place.

The Council is determined to effectively address the issues concerned.

38. MOTION SUBMITTED BY COUNCILLOR PUGH - SOUTHPORT 
MARKET 

It was moved by Councillor Pugh, seconded by Councillor Shaw

Southport Market 

This Council welcomes innovative thinking on Southport market and hopes 
to ensure wide and meaningful consultation on any new proposals.

Following debate, on a show of hands, the Mayor declared that the Motion 
was carried unanimously and it was 

RESOLVED:

Southport Market 

This Council welcomes innovative thinking on Southport market and hopes 
to ensure wide and meaningful consultation on any new proposals.

Page 23

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Council Date of Meeting: 19 September 2019

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury Management 
Outturn 2018/19

Report of: Head of Corporate 
Resources

Wards Affected: All Wards

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

This outturn report provides Members with details of the treasury management activities 
undertaken to 31st March 2019. Cabinet receives this outturn report to allow review 
against the Treasury Management Policy & Strategy and Prudential Indicators. This 
report is also provided to Audit & Governance Committee, whose role it is to carry out 
scrutiny of treasury management policies and practices.

Recommendation(s):

Members are requested to note the Treasury Management position to 31st March 2019 
and the update to 31st May 2019, to review the effects of decisions taken in pursuit of the 
Treasury Management Strategy and to consider the implications of changes resulting 
from regulatory, economic and market factors affecting the Council’s treasury 
management activities.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To ensure that Members are fully apprised of the treasury activity undertaken to 31st 
March 2019 and to 31st May 2019 in order to meet the reporting requirements set out in 
Sefton’s Treasury Management Practices and those recommended by the CIPFA code. 

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

N/A

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs
None

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



(B) Capital Costs
None

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
None

Legal Implications:
The Council has a statutory duty under the Local Government Act 2003 to review its 
Prudential Indicators and Treasury Management Activities.

Equality Implications:

There are no equality implications.

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: n/a

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: n/a

Commission, broker and provide core services: n/a

Place – leadership and influencer: Support strategic planning and promote innovative, 
affordable and sustainable capital investment projects through application of the CIPFA 
Prudential Code.

Drivers of change and reform: The Treasury Management function ensures that cash 
flow is adequately planned and cash is available when needed by the Council for 
improvements to the borough through its service provision and the Capital Programme.

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:  Pursuit of optimum performance on 
investments activities and minimising the cost of borrowing and the effective 
management of the associated risk continues to contribute to a balanced budget for the 
Council.

Greater income for social investment: n/a

Cleaner Greener: n/a

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD 5669/19) is the author of the report.

Page 26

Agenda Item 7



The Chief Legal & Democratic Officer (LD4793/19) has been consulted and has no 
comments on the report.

(B) External Consultations 

The Council’s external Treasury Management Advisors: Link Asset Services have 
provided advice with regards to Treasury Management activities undertaken during the 
financial year.

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the meeting.

Contact Officer: Graham Hussey
Telephone Number: 0151 934 4100
Email Address: Graham.Hussey@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

None

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



BACKGROUND:

1. Introduction

1.1. The CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (The 
Prudential Code) was introduced following the Local Government Act 2003.  The 
Prudential Code details a number of measures / limits / parameters (Prudential 
Indicators) that, to comply with legislation, must be set in respect of each financial 
year to ensure that the Council is acting prudently and that its capital expenditure 
proposals are affordable. 

1.2. A requirement of the Prudential Code is the reporting to Cabinet and Full Council 
of the outturn position of indicators following the end of the financial year.  In 
accordance with this requirement, this report outlines the 2018/19 outturn for the 
following Prudential Indicators:-

i. Capital Expenditure (Section 2);
ii. Capital Financing Requirement (Section 3.1);
iii. Gross Borrowing and the CFR (Section 3.2);
iv. Borrowing Limits (Section 3.3);
v. Financing Costs as a proportion of Net Revenue Stream (Section 3.4);
vi. Treasury Management Indicators (Section 6).

1.3. The Treasury Management Policy and Strategy Statements are agreed annually 
by the Council as part of the budget process.  A requirement of the Policy 
Statement is the reporting to Cabinet and Full Council of the results of the 
Council’s treasury management activities in the previous year.  Treasury 
management in this context is defined as:

‘The management of the authority’s cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those 
activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.’

1.4. In accordance with the above this report outlines the results of treasury 
management activities undertaken in 2018/19 covering the following issues:

- borrowing strategy and practice
- compliance with Treasury Limits
- compliance with Prudential Indicators
- investment strategy and practice.

1.5. The results of treasury management activities in 2018/19 are reflected in the net 
expenditure on Capital Financing Costs included within the Council’s Revenue 
Budget. 

1.6. The Capital Programme is also agreed annually as part of the budget process. It 
sets out the anticipated capital expenditure to be incurred within the year. 

Page 28

Agenda Item 7



2. Capital Expenditure

2.1. The original estimate for 2018/19 expenditure together with the actual capital 
expenditure calculated on an accruals basis for the financial year is as follows:

2.2. Capital Programme expenditure in 2018/19 was £22.961m and is less than the 
original budget estimate. The variation is due to the re-profiling of some major 
programmes in Highways and Public Protection, School’s maintenance and 
improvement, and the Disabled Facilities Grant.

3. The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need

3.1. Capital Financing Requirement

3.1.1. The Capital Financing Requirement reflects the Authority’s underlying need to 
borrow for capital purposes and is based on historic capital financing decisions 
and the borrowing requirement arising from the financing of actual capital 
expenditure incurred in 2018/19.

3.1.2. The Council is currently internally borrowed meaning it temporarily uses its own 
cash balances to fund some capital schemes instead of external borrowing which 
saves the cost of interest payments on loans. This reflects the current national low 
interest rates for investment of cash balances and the need to find savings for the 
revenue budget.

3.1.3. The actual level of Total Capital Financing Requirement as at 31st March 2019 is 
lower than the estimate. This is due to Capital Expenditure being lower than the 
initial estimate as mentioned in paragraph 2.2 (above).

3.2. Gross Borrowing and the CFR

3.2.1. CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities includes the 
following statement as a key factor of prudence:

“In order to ensure that over the medium-term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the 
local authority should ensure that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total 
of capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional 
capital financing requirement for the current and next two financial years.”

2018/19 Budget
£m

Actual
£m

 Capital Expenditure 31.010 22.961

2018/19 Estimate
£m

Actual
£m

 Capital Financing Requirement 236.571 231.762

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



3.2.2. In the report to Cabinet in March 2018, it was stated that the Authority would 
comply with this requirement in 2018/19.  During the financial year, gross 
external borrowing did not exceed the total of the Capital Financing 
Requirement. The chart below shows the out-turn position compared to the 

original estimate:

3.3.  Borrowing Limits

2018/19
£m

Authorised limit 177.000

Operational boundary 167.000

Maximum Gross Borrowing Position 167.272

3.3.1. The Operational Boundary sets a boundary on the total amount of long term 
borrowing that the Council should enter into. It reflects an estimate of the 
Authority’s current commitments, existing capital expenditure plans, and is 
consistent with its approved Treasury Management Policy Statement and 
practices.

3.3.2. The Authorised Limit sets a limit on the amount of external borrowing (both short 
and long term) that the Council can enter into. It uses the Operational Boundary 
as its base but also includes additional headroom to allow for exceptional cash 
movements.

3.3.3. The Maximum Gross Borrowing Position shows the highest level of actual 
borrowing undertaken during 2018/19 financial year. This level did not exceed the 
Authorised limit. 

3.3.4. A minor increase above the operational boundary occurred during April 2018 due 
to new borrowing undertaken at the end of 2017/18 financial year. The gross 
borrowing position then dropped below the boundary by 25th April 2018 as capital 
was repaid on loans, and remained below the operational limit for the rest of the 
year. Minor variations above the operational boundary are permitted under the 
Prudential Code provided they occur on an occasional rather than regular basis.

156.8 157.9

Estimate Actual
0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0
236.6 231.8

Gross Debt
CFR

Gross Debt and the CFR 2018/19
£m

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



3.4. Financing Costs as a Proportion of Net Revenue Stream

3.4.1. This indicator measures the financing costs of capital expenditure as a proportion 
of the net resource expenditure of the General Fund.

3.4.2. The overall ratio is as anticipated, being only marginally different (0.1%) to the 
original forecast showing that the Council’s capital financing remains at an 
affordable level. 

4. Borrowing Strategy and Practice

4.1. The Council’s current debt portfolio can be summarised as follows:

  

4.2. The Council’s PWLB debt activity during 2018/19 is summarised in the following 
table:

4.3. The policy of internally borrowing, running down the Authority’s cash balances 
rather than taking out new borrowing, continued with regards to the Capital 

Actual Debt Outstanding 31st March 2018
£m

31st March 2019
£m

PWLB 154.687 148.692

Finance Leases 9.083 6.129

Merseyside Residuary Body 3.502 3.063

TOTAL 167.272 157.884

Average PWLB Interest Rate in Year 3.71% 3.86%

Movement in Year Actual
£m

PWLB opening debt 1st April 2018 154.687

Less principal repayments (5.995)

Add new borrowing 0

Closing PWLB debt 31st March 2019 148.692

Financing 
Costs 

£7.96m 
(3.5%)Total Net 

Revenue 
Stream 
£224.90

m

Actual 2018/19Financing 
Costs 

£7.43m  
(3.6%)

Total Net 
Revenue 
Stream 

£209.30m

Estimate 2018/19

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



Programme in 2019/20 as no new expenditure was financed from external 
borrowing.

5. Debt Maturity Profile

5.1. This is a profile measuring the amount of borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in 
each period as a percentage of total borrowing that is fixed rate:

 

5.2. As can be seen our debt profile highlights that most of our debt is due to mature in 
15 years and above, reflecting the internal borrowing position of the Council. 

6. Compliance with Treasury Limits

6.1. The following Treasury Limits were approved by Council during the 2018/19 
Budget Setting process:

6.1.1 During the financial year the Council operated within the agreed borrowing limits. 
No short term borrowing or borrowing subject to variable rates was undertaken. 

6.2. Non-Specified Investment Indicator

Fixed Rate Debt Maturity Upper
Limit

Lower
Limit

Actual
31st March 2019

Under 12 months 35% 0% 4%
12 months and within 24 months 40% 0% 2%
24 months and within 5 years 40% 0% 24%
5 years and within 10 years 40% 0% 15%
10 years and within 15 years 40% 0% 17%
15 years and above 90% 25% 38%

Treasury Limits Limit
£m

Max. Borrowing 
2018/19

£m

Authorised Borrowing Limit 177.000 167.272

Short Term Borrowing Limit 15.0 0.0

Proportion of external borrowing
subject to variable interest rates 20% 0%

Upper Limit Limit
 Max. Investment 

2018/19
£m

Non-specified Investments 40% 32%

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



6.2.1. An investment of £5m was made in 2014 with the Church, Charities and Local 
Authorities (CCLA) Property Fund. This sum remains within the limit for 
investments greater than 1 year as a proportion of total investments. 

7. Investment Strategy and Practice

7.1. The Council invests all available cash balances, which includes school balances 
and the insurance fund, following a policy of obtaining maximum returns whilst 
minimising risks.

  
i. Externally Managed Investments
      No externally managed funds are held.  

ii. Internally Managed Investments
       The Council’s available funds during the year averaged £35.1m and were

                 managed internally with advice from our Treasury Consultants.

7.2. The level of the Council’s investments during 2018/19 and comparable figures from 
the previous year are summarised in the following table:

7.3. In 2018/19 a weighted average return of 1.28% was achieved. This is more than 
the benchmark 7 day LIBID figure of 0.51% and is considered to be an acceptable 
return. The majority of the funds are invested with banks and Money Market Funds 
(MMF’s), with the remaining balance of £5m invested with the CCLA Property Fund. 
The return of 1.28% can be disaggregated into a return of 0.68% on bank and MMF 
investments, whilst 4.38% was returned by the CCLA investment.

7.4. The year on year increase in the average return on investments reflects a minor 
improvement in Money Market Fund rates over the past 12 months. The actual 
performance of investments has therefore over-achieved against the total budget 
for 2018/19 as follows:

Investments 2017/18 2018/19

Total Investment of Cash 
Balances at year end £15.42m £18.00m

Average Investment Balance 
during the year £34.50m £35.10m

Average Return on Investments 1.10% 1.28%

Budget Profile Budget
£m

Actual
£m

Variance
£m

Outturn 2018/19 0.375 0.453 0.078

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



8. Treasury Position for 2019/20 – Update to 31st May 2019

8.1. Investments Held

8.1.1. Investments held to 31st May 2019 comprise to the following:

Institution Deposit Rate Maturity Rating
£m %

Money Market Funds:
Aberdeen 2.880 0.72 n/a AAA
Aviva 2.880 0.76 n/a AAA
BNP Paribas 2.880 0.65 n/a AAA
Goldman Sachs 1.100 0.71 n/a AAA
Invesco 2.880 0.77 n/a AAA
Federated Investors 2.600 0.77 n/a AAA
Insight 2.600 0.75 n/a AAA

Total 17.820
Fixed Term Deposits:
Lloyds 3.000 1.05 10/02/2020 A+
Coventry Building Society 3.000 0.92 11/11/2019 A-

Total 6.000
Property Fund:
CCLA 5.000 4.27 n/a n/a

Total 5.000

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 28.820

8.1.2. The above cash balances represent the full range of earmarked reserves such as 
school’s balances.

8.1.3. All of the investments made since April 2019 have been with organisations on the 
current counterparty list. The maximum level of investment permitted in the 
Treasury Management Strategy in any one institution, or banking group, is 
currently £25m. Whilst the maximum should be retained, in case economic 
conditions change, a day to day operational maximum of 10% of the total portfolio 
is currently being imposed for specified investments. This will spread the risk for 
the Council, but will have a small detrimental impact on the returns the Council will 
receive in the future. The Council has remained within that boundary during the 
year. At present, it is not expected that there will be any need to review this limit.

8.1.4. The Council will only invest in institutions that hold a minimum Fitch rating of A- for 
banking institutions, or AAA for money market funds. The ratings applied to 
investment grade institutions, and the much riskier speculative grade institutions, 
as defined by Fitch, have been placed into a risk matrix (paragraph 8.1.7.).

8.1.5. An investment has been made with the Church, Charities and Local Authority 
Investment Fund (CCLA) in June 2014. CCLA invest in commercial property which 
is rented out to enterprises as retail units, warehousing, and offices. The majority 

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



of properties owned are in the south of the country where the market is currently 
more buoyant than the north. The Council has in effect bought a share of the 
property portfolio, and returns paid are in the region of 4%. This is seen as a long 
term investment with the potential for capital growth of the investment as property 
prices potentially increase. However, when the investment is made fees are 
deducted from the initial investment hence in the first year any income received 
covers these fees.

8.1.6. The Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Property Fund has increased over a 12 month 
period to April 2019 from 303.09p per unit to 306.50p per unit, an increase of 
1.1%. The rate of inflation (CPI) to the end of April was 2.0% by comparison 
hence the value of the investment growth is marginally lower although the income 
received at a yield rate of 4.27% does represent a real return. 

8.1.7. The matrix below shows how the Council has set its risk appetite by being risk 
averse and putting security and liquidity before yield:

PROBABLITY of 
DEFAULT High

INCREASING 
YIELD

High

F1 A+            
6

F2             
12

F3                 
18

B             
24

C             
30

D             
36

F1 A+             
5

F2           
10

F3            
15

F3             
20

B             
25

C             
30

F1+/AA-                              
4

F1 A                    
8

F2                                 
12                    

F3                       
16                     

F3             
20

B             
24 

F1+/AA                
3

F1  A+                                        
6

F1 A-                      
9
£3.00m

F2                                     
12                    

F3             
15

F3                 
18

F1+/AA+                
2

F1+/AA-                
4         

F1  A+                                        
6
£3.00m

F1 A                          
8

F2           
10

F2             
12

F1+/AAA               
1    
£17.82m

F1+/AA+                    
2

F1+/AA              
3

F1+/AA-                      
4

F1 A+            
5

F1 A+            
6

Low High
SEVERITY of 
CONSEQUENCE

SEFTON RISK TOLERANCE:

Risk Level Score Grade Amount Invested

LOW 1 - 4 Investment Grade £17.82m

LOW - MEDIUM 5 - 9 Investment Grade £6.00m

MEDIUM 10 - 20 Investment Grade £0

HIGH 21 - 36 Speculative Grade £0

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



8.1.8. The ratio of overnight deposits (short term) to fixed term investments is shown 
below:

8.1.9. Two new fixed term investments have been made since the last quarterly report. 
Two amounts of £3m have been placed, one for 9 months with Lloyds Bank and 
one for 6 months with Coventry Building Society. 

8.1.10. The Council will continue to maximise any investment opportunities as they arise, 
but in light of the current cash flow forecast it is not envisaged that any substantial 
increase in returns can be achieved for the remainder of the current financial year 
as cash balances available for investment are forecast to be relatively low. 

8.2. Interest Earned

8.2.1. The actual performance of investments against the profiled budget to the end of 
May 2019 and the forecast performance of investments against total budget at 
year end is shown below:

8.2.2. There is no significant variation in forecast investment income as at the end of 
May 2019.

8.2.3. There has been some improvement in investment rates since the Bank of England 
base rate increase was announced in August 2018. As mentioned in paragraph 

Budget Profile Budget
£m

Actual
£m

Variance
£m

May-19 0.036 0.032 0.004

Budget Profile Budget
£m

Forecast
£m

Variance
£m

Outturn 2019/20 0.165 0.165 0.000

Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18Sep-18Oct-18Nov-18Dec-18Jan-19Feb-19Mar-19Apr-19May-19
0.0
5.0

10.0
15.0
20.0
25.0
30.0
35.0
40.0
45.0

Property Fund Fixed term Short term

Fixed and Short Term Investments

£m

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



8.1.10 however, it is not envisaged that improved rates will lead to a significant 
increase in the current forecast income from investments during 2019/20.

8.2.4. The Council has achieved an average rate of return on its investments of 1.6% 
that has out-performed the 7 day LIBID and the model portfolio provided by Link 
Asset Services to the end of May 2019.

* Link’s data only available to April 2019 at the time of writing

Ju
n-1

8
Ju

l-1
8

Aug
-18

Sep
-18

Oct-
18

Nov
-18

Dec
-18

Ja
n-1

9

Feb
-19

Mar-
19

Apr-
19

May
-19

0.0
0.2
0.4
0.6
0.8
1.0
1.2
1.4
1.6
1.8

Sefton 7 Day LIBID Link

Comparison of Investment Rates

%

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Council Date of Meeting: Thursday 19 
September 2019

Subject: Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - Revised Capital 
Allocations

Report of: Head of Corporate 
Resources

Wards Affected: All wards

Portfolio: Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

Yes Included in 
Forward Plan:

Yes

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

To inform Council of additional and revised capital allocations for the 2019/20 Capital 
Programme.

Recommendation(s):

Council is recommended to: -

i) Approve the additional and revised Transport allocations (section 2.1). 
ii) Approve the additional Better Care Fund (BCF) grant allocation (section 3.1) 
iii) Approve the additional Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 

allocations (section 4.3). 
iv) Approve for inclusion in the capital programme the Town Centre Commission 

Fund grant once final approval for the grant is received from Liverpool City 
Region Combined Authority (section 5.3).

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To approve updates to funding resources so that they can be applied to capital schemes 
in the delivery of the Council’s overall capital strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None.

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs

N/A

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



(B) Capital Costs

The additional allocations to the capital programme will be fully funded from 
external grants.

Implications of the Proposals:

The following implications of this proposal have been considered and where there are 
specific implications, these are set out as follows:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets):
The financial resources specified in this report will be added to the Council’s capital 
programme for 2019/20 and future years.

Legal Implications:
None
Equality Implications:
None

Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: 
The SEND grant will support young people with special educational needs and 
disabilities to attend a mainstream school or access a place in high quality specialist 
provision without having to travel long distances.

Elements of the transport programme provide better access to the highway network, 
improving safety for highway users.

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: 
N/A

Commission, broker and provide core services: 
The transport capital programme enhances the core infrastructure services provided by 
the Council.

Place – leadership and influencer: 
The Town Centre Fund will enhance place-making, delivering jobs and infrastructure 
improvements, and improving the town centre offer including increasing foot fall and 
vitality across the City Region.

Drivers of change and reform: 
N/A
Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity:  
Elements of the transport capital programme are designed to enhance the highway 
network thus facilitating more reliable access and journey times creating a basis for 
greater economic growth.

Greater income for social investment: 
N/A

Page 40

Agenda Item 8



Cleaner Greener: 
The transport programme will allow for more reliable journey times and easier access to 
the highway network and will help to support better air quality across the borough.

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources is the author of the report (FD 5780/19)

The Chief Legal and Democratic Officer has been consulted and has no comments on 
the report (LD 4904/19).

(B) External Consultations 

N/A

Implementation Date for the Decision
Following the expiry of the “call-in” period for Minutes of the Cabinet Meeting

Contact Officers: Stephan Van Arendsen
Tel: 0151 934 4082
Email:  Stephan.VanArendsen@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:
None

Background Papers:
There are no background papers for inspection

Page 41

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Stephan.VanArendsen@sefton.gov.uk


1. Introduction

1.1 The Cabinet meetings of 25th July 2019 and 5th September 2019 agreed the 
following additional and revised allocations to the capital budget and requested 
they be referred to Council for approval.

2. Highways & Public Protection – Amended Transport Allocations

2.1 There are three new grant allocations secured via the Combined Authority (CA) that 
are presented for approval to be included in the capital programme for 2019/20 and 
future years. The allocations are as follows:

2.1.1 Major Scheme Development Fund
An indicative allocation of £0.275m has been allocated by the CA and will be 
included in the Integrated Transport Programme for 2019/20. This allocation is 
subject to final approval by the CA.

2.1.2 Pot Hole Funding
The Department for Transport allocation for Sefton in 2019/20 is £0.166m. This 
funding will be allocated to the ongoing Highways Maintenance scheme.

2.1.3 Sustainable Urban Development Fund (SUD)
£1.723m has been secured from the European Regional Development Fund 
over 2019/20 and 2020/21 for improvements to cycle routes in Southport and 
Crosby. It is proposed that an indicative amount of £0.825m will be allocated to 
improvements to the Transpennine Trail alongside the Coastal Road in 
Southport during 2019/20 with the remaining balance of £0.898m phased to 
schemes in 2020/21. This expenditure profile is subject to Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) approval.

2.2 The revised transport allocations for 2019/20 and 2020/21, including new 
allocations and those previously approved, are shown in the table below:

Transport Capital Allocations
2019/20

£000
2020/21

£000

LTP Highways Management 2,298 2,298
LTP Integrated Transport 990 990
LTP Key Route Network (revised) 405 405
Pot Hole Fund* 166 -
CA Local Growth Fund 2,188 -
Sustainable Urban Development Fund * 825 898
Merseyside Local Growth Fund STEP 912 1,135
Major Scheme Development Fund* 275 -
M58 Junction 1 Scheme 4,678 -

Page 42

Agenda Item 8



North Liverpool Key Corridor - 178
Key Route Network Improvements 200 -
Major scheme contributions (182) -
2018/19 carry forward to completed existing schemes 341 -

Total Programme Funding 13,096 5,904
* new allocations to be approved

2.3 Council is requested to approve the revised and additional transport allocations for 
2019/20 and 2020/21 as shown above. It should be noted that the Highways and 
Public Protection capital programme has been built using these allocations.

3. Adult Social Care Additional Allocation

3.1 An additional Better Care Fund allocation for 2018/19 was awarded in February 
2019 of £0.439m and Council is requested to approve this for inclusion within the 
capital programme.

3.2 A programme of expenditure of £4.761m in 2019/20 has now been formulated and 
an Adult Social Care project board is being set up that will manage the delivery of 
schemes.

3.3 It should be noted that the ASC capital programme has been built using the 
additional allocation for 2018/19 of £0.439m.

4. Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) Capital Allocations

4.1 Sefton has made a bid to the Department for Education to draw down SEND capital 
grant funding in 2019/20 of £0.849m in order to fund an overall programme of 
works totalling £1.150m.

4.2 The aim within Sefton, is for children and young people with SEND to be able to 
attend a school within their own community. They should be supported to attend a 
local mainstream school or access a place in high quality specialist provision 
without having to travel long distances.

4.3 Four new capital schemes to improve the condition and accessibility of school 
buildings have therefore been proposed as part of the bid:

 Redgate Primary – Specialist Resourced Provision £0.06m
 Rowan Park School – Expanded Provision £0.35m
 IMPACT Pupil Referral Unit – Refurbishment £0.70m
 Crosby High School – Improved Accessibility £0.04m

Page 43

Agenda Item 8



4.4 The Department for Education is currently reviewing these schemes and will 
release the funds to Sefton in the coming months once they are satisfied that the 
plans have met the funding requirements.

4.5 Sefton’s match funding for the bid is £0.301m to be allocated from the balance of 
existing school’s allocations.

4.6 Council is requested to approve the inclusion of the SEND capital schemes within 
the capital programme.

5. New Grant Bid - Liverpool City Region (LCR) Town Centre Fund

5.1 Sefton is currently drawing up proposals to make an application to the LCR Town 
Centre Fund. The strategic objectives of this fund include: enhancing place-making, 
delivering jobs and infrastructure improvements, and improving the town centre 
offer including increasing foot fall and vitality across the City Region to enhance the 
local town centres and strengthen economic growth in the region.

5.2 Interventions under the Town Centre Fund will contribute to local communities and 
improve the environment within which people work and live through:

i. Enhancing the sustainable vitality of local town and district centres through 
investment that delivers new employment opportunities and makes those 
employment opportunities accessible to local residents.

ii. Place renewal projects, particularly those designed to move away from 
traditional retail, and broaden the town centre offer and ensure future 
sustainability.

5.3 A total bid of £1m is proposed with a minimum of £0.500m allocated to capital 
projects along with an element of match funding where identified

5.4 Council is requested to approve for inclusion in the capital programme the Town 
Centre Commission Fund grant once final approval for the grant is received from 
Liverpool City Region Combined Authority.

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



Report to: Council Date of Meeting: 19 September 2019

Subject: Local Government Act 1972 – Section 85 - Attendance at 
Meetings

Report of: Chief Legal and 
Democratic Officer

Wards Affected: St. Oswald

Portfolio: Cabinet Member - Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate 
Services

Is this a Key 
Decision:

No Included in 
Forward Plan:

No

Exempt / 
Confidential 
Report:

No

Summary:

This report requests authority to approve and authorise the absence of Councillor 
Paula Spencer from attendance at Council and Committee Meetings pursuant to 
Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Recommendation(s):

That the current absence from all Council and Committee Meetings of Councillor 
Paula Spencer due to ill health be authorised and approved for the period until the 
scheduled meeting of the Council to be held on 27 February 2020, pursuant to 
Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Reasons for the Recommendation(s):

To comply with the provisions of Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: (including any Risk Implications)

None

What will it cost and how will it be financed?

(A) Revenue Costs – Not applicable

(B) Capital Costs – Not applicable

Implications of the Proposals:

Resource Implications (Financial, IT, Staffing and Assets): Not applicable
Legal Implications: The effect of the legislation is contained within the contents of 
the report.
Equality Implications:There are no equality implications. 

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



Contribution to the Council’s Core Purpose:

Protect the most vulnerable: Not applicable

Facilitate confident and resilient communities: Not applicable

Commission, broker and provide core services: Not applicable

Place – leadership and influencer: Not applicable

Drivers of change and reform: Not applicable

Facilitate sustainable economic prosperity: Not applicable

Greater income for social investment: Not applicable  

Cleaner Greener: Not applicable

What consultations have taken place on the proposals and when?

(A) Internal Consultations

The Head of Corporate Resources (FD5789/19) and the Chief Legal and Democratic 
Officer  (LD4013/19) have been consulted and have no comments on the report
(B) External Consultations Not applicable  

Implementation Date for the Decision

Immediately following the Council meeting.

Contact Officer: Ruth Harrison
Telephone Number: 0151 934 2046
Email Address: ruth.harrison@sefton.gov.uk

Appendices:

There are no appendices to this report

Background Papers:

There are no background papers available for inspection.

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



1. Introduction/Background

1.1 Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that if an Elected 
Member fails to attend any Council or Committee Meeting for a period of six 
months, he or she ceases to be an Elected Member, unless the absence was 
approved by the Council before the expiry of the six-month period.

1.2 Unfortunately Councillor Paula Spencer has not been able to attend any 
meetings for five months due to ill health and she will need further time to 
recuperate. She last attended a Council Meeting on 25 April 2019.

1.3 Members are requested to approve the absence of Councillor Paula Spencer   
from all Council or Committee Meetings for the period from the date of this 
meeting until the scheduled meeting of the Council to be held on 27 February 
2020. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL – 19 SEPTEMBER 2019

REPORT OF THE LEADER/DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

COUNCIL CONSTITUTION – RULE 29 (SPECIAL URGENCY) AND 
RULE 46 (WAIVING CALL-IN) PROVISIONS

I wish to report that the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee gave her consent, under Rule 29, Special Urgency and Rule 46, 
waiving Call In, of the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the 
Council Constitution to the following issue being dealt with as a matter of 
urgency, on the basis that it was impracticable to defer the decision because 
the contract needed to be terminated before the 17 September 2019 under 
the Councils contract rules.  Subsequent prices would also be subject to 
market forces and the Council wishes to secure prices early to achieve a 
financial saving for the Council, Schools and Partners on the energy portfolio.  
Options for remaining within the CCS framework were withdrawn on 2 
September 2019, which necessitated this action, to secure current prices.

CABINET – 5 SEPTEMBER 2019

42. GAS FRAMEWORK TRANSFER 

The Cabinet considered a report, that was deemed by the Deputy Leader of 
the Council as a report of Urgent Nature pursuant to Chapter 11, Rule 29 of 
the Access to Information Rules of the Constitution.  The report was 
presented by the Head of Corporate and sought approval for the termination 
of the CCS Gas framework and subsequent appointment to the NEPO Gas 
Framework for a two year interim contract, in order to secure early financial 
savings. 

Decision Made:    That:

(1) it be noted that the proposal was a Key Decision that had not been    
included in the Council's Forward Plan of Key Decisions.  Consequently, 
the Leader of the Council and the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services) had been 
consulted under Rule 29 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules 
of the Constitution, to the decision being made by the Cabinet as a 
matter of urgency on the basis that it was impracticable to defer the 
decision until Cabinet in October due to the contract termination date;

(2) it be noted that the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee   
(Regulatory, Compliance and Corporate Services) had been consulted 
under Rule 46 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the 
Constitution, waiving call in due to the need to procure quickly;

Page 49

Agenda Item 11



(3) the termination of the current Crown Commercial Services (CCS) 
procurement framework contract for gas supplies for all Council 
buildings, including schools;

(4) Sefton be authorised to join the North-East Purchasing Organisation 
(NEPO) for the supply of gas on an interim contract to cover the period 
1st April 2020 – 31 March 2022; and

(5) the continuation of the authority previously delegated to Head of 
Corporate Resources and the Head of Strategic Support to sign the 
Customer Access Agreements for the NEPO framework and approve 
purchasing decisions, be approved.

Reasons for the Decisions:

Sefton have recently reviewed our options within the CCS gas supply 
framework. Although the market price is low currently, CCS were not able to 
offer opportunities to capture this saving (approaching £200K in year 1 2020/1 
and £175K in year 2 2021/2).

In order to achieve these savings and remain OJEU compliant, Sefton 
Officers are suggesting the course of action outlined above to achieve a two 
year financial saving (based on current prices).

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 

Do nothing – remain on the current contracts and take a price in April 2020, 
based on purchasing made during October 2019 – March 2020. This was 
rejected due to government advice that market conditions during this time 
were likely to be volatile, hence an increased risk across our portfolio.

Page 50

Agenda Item 11



COUNCIL MOTION

19 September 2019

PROPOSED BY: Councillor Pugh

SECONDED BY: Councillor TBC

COUNCIL MOTION

Given (a) the proroguing of parliament and the reduction in parliamentary time 
available for the scrutiny of government plans for existing the European Union

           (b) the service concerns and uncertainties illustrated in Council reports and in 
the reports of partner organisations  

This Council agrees to issue an urgent invitation to Mr Damien Moore, Southport MP 
and PPS to Michael Gove to a stakeholder meeting prior to the exit date to clarify the 
implications for the wider community and answer questions submitted on the specifics 
of government policy.

Page 51

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



SEFTON LABOUR GROUP

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO BE PUT TO THE COUNCIL MEETING ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2019

Moved by: Councillor Halsall

Seconded by: Councillor 

NJC PAY TO COUNCIL

A fully funded, proper pay rise for council and school workers.

 This council notes: 

 Since 2010 councils across the country have endured central government 
funding cuts of an average of 50%. 

 Between 2010 and 2020, councils will have lost 60p out of every £1 they 
receive from central government. 

 The 2019 Local Government Association (LGA) survey of council finances 
found that 1 in 3 councils fear they will run out of funding to provide even their 
statutory, legal duties by 2022/23. This number rises to almost two thirds of 
councils by 2024/2025 or later. 

 The LGA estimates councils will face a funding gap of £8 billion by 2025. 
 Faced with these cuts from central government, the local government 

workforce has endured years of pay restraint with the majority of pay points 
losing 22 per cent of their value since 2009/10. 

 At the same time as seeing their pay reduce in real terms, workers experience 
ever increasing workloads and persistent job insecurity. Across the UK, an 
estimated 876,000 jobs have been lost in local government since June 2010 - 
a reduction of 30 per cent. Local government has arguably been hit by more 
severe job losses than any other part of the public sector. 

 There has been a disproportionate impact on women, with women making up 
more than three quarters of the local government workforce. 

This council believes: 

 Our workers are public service heroes. They keep our communities clean, 
care for those in need, and keep our towns and cities running. 

 Without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, the council services 
our residents rely on would not be deliverable. 

Page 53

Agenda Item 13



 Government funding has been cut to the extent that a proper pay rise could 
result in a reduction in local government services. 

 The Government needs to take responsibility and fully fund increases in pay; 
it should not put the burden on local authorities whose funding has been cut to 
the bone. 

This council resolves to: 

 Support the pay claim submitted by Unite, GMB and UNISON on behalf of 
council and school workers for a £10 per hour minimum wage and a 10% 
uplift across all other pay points in 2020/21. 

 Call on the Local Government Association to make urgent representations to 
central government to fund the National Joint Council (NJC) pay claim. 

 Write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call for a pay increase for 
local government workers to be funded with new money from central 
government. 

 Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay 
claim. 

 Ensure that all Sefton employees are provided with details of how to join a 
trade union as part of the induction process and that existing employees are 
reminded of the option, opportunity and benefits that being a member of a 
trade union can bring.
 

Page 54

Agenda Item 13



SEFTON LABOUR GROUP

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO BE PUT TO THE COUNCIL MEETING ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2019

Moved by: Councillor Byrom

Seconded by: Councillor Grace

This Council: -
 
1. Recognises and applauds Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority (MFRA) following its 

very strong performance in the recent Inspection carried out by Her Majesty’s 
Inspectorate of Constabulary and Fire and Rescue Services (HMICFRS).

 
The Inspectorate assesses Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority as GOOD when 
considering: -

 
•      How effective they are in keeping people safe from fire and other risks
•      How efficient they are in keeping people safe from fire and other risks
•      How well they look after their people
 
but notably, OUTSTANDING in the areas of preventing fires and national resilience - 
the only Service in the Country to receive 2 Outstanding assessments for its work.

 
2.    Notes that this is the highest ‘performance’ in the Country, from the first two rounds of 

inspection.
 
3.     Congratulates the Chief Fire Officer for his leadership and his team for their hard work 

and tenacity, notably the Fire Fighters; Fire Prevention teams; Protection Officers; 
Support Services and the representative bodies, who along with the members of the 
MFRA have achieved this recognition.

 
4.     Agrees that the political decision to support a model which only utilises professional full 

time firefighters; to partner with the Home Office as lead authority for national 
resilience; to maintain a 10 minute response standard (5 min 40 sec average 
attendance time);  to resource to demand;  to increase the number of Fire Engines; to 
improve the diversity of the workforce; to invest in up to date fit for purpose Community 
Fire and Rescue Stations; whilst giving home fire prevention very high priority; has 
contributed to the result and findings of the inspectorate.

 
5.    Believes that the results would have been even better if the Government had 

maintained the proper level of funding for MFRA, who have suffered some of the 
largest cuts to Government grant in the country, but have tenaciously hung on to full 
time firefighters whilst maintaining an emphasis on community fire prevention, in order 
to help keep Merseyside safe.

Page 55

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



SEFTON LABOUR GROUP

NOTICE OF MOTION

TO BE PUT TO THE COUNCIL MEETING ON 19 SEPTEMBER 2019

Moved by: Councillor Carragher

Seconded by:   Councillor Roscoe

DOG POOP -  A PUBLIC HEALTH HAZARD

This Council notes:

1. Dog poop is a problem we deal with on a daily basis. But is it dangerous? 
2. Pet waste is a dangerous pollutant in the same category as toxic chemicals and oil.
3. Unscooped poop is carried by overland water flow or is washed into drains, ending up 

in faraway streams, rivers and ground water.
4. Pet waste can spread parasites including hookworms, ringworms, tapeworms and 

Salmonella.  When infected dog poop comes into contact with your lawn, the poop will 
eventually "disappear", but the parasite eggs can linger for years!  When a human or 
animal comes into contact with that soil through everyday activities like walking 
barefoot, gardening or playing, they risk infection from those eggs ... even years after 
the poop is gone.

5. Pet waste is teaming with E. Coli and other harmful bacteria including faecal coliform 
bacteria, which causes serious kidney disorders, intestinal illness, cramps and 
diarrhoea in humans. (There are 23 million faecal coliform bacteria in a single gram of 
pet waste!)

6. Dog poop often contains roundworm larvae, which cause blindness. If a human ingests 
a roundworm larva, it can migrate through the body causing disease to the brain, lungs, 
kidneys, liver, heart or eyes. So, when people (especially children and or pregnant 
women) touch soil, dog toys or anything that has been in contact with dog faeces and 
then touch their mouths, they can become infected.

The Council Believes: -

1. Dog poop on our streets is a constant complaint that we receive from residents.
2. As a Council we are actively promoting the correct disposal of pet poop by the 

installation of bins in parks, public space protection orders and dog wardens. 
3. The majority of Sefton dog owners are responsible owners and dispose of their doggy 

deposits in the correct manner.  
4. However, the owners who do not clean up after their pooches may not be aware of the 

dangers they are creating for our children, pregnant women and vulnerable citizens. 

Page 57

Agenda Item 15



 I call upon this Council to support this motion and resolve that we:

1. Engage with schools, colleges, GP surgeries, pharmacies, community groups and 
voluntary organisations to create an educational programme of the dangers of 
undisposed of pet poop.

2. Work with Public Health to create a public campaign throughout Sefton to stamp out 
this behaviour. 

3. Highlight the environmental damage, dog poop and also doggy wipes cause our 
community. 

4. Finally, given the dangers this causes to humans, the courts should impose the 
maximum fines at all times. 

Dog poop doesn't just "wash away" or disappear. 
So, if you're not disposing of your dog's waste, you're putting yourself, your family, 

your dog, your community, your environment and your water supply at risk. 
NO EXCUSE, CLEAN UP THE POOP!

Page 58

Agenda Item 15



Notice of Motion

Full Council

19th September 2019

Proposed By: Councillor Tony Brough

Seconded By: Councillor Sir Ron Watson CBE

Questions on Notice at Full Council

That the Council’s Constitution be amended so that if a Member of the Council asks a 
question(s) at Full Council to a Member of the Executive and that Member is unable to 
attend the Council Meeting, the Leader or Deputy Leader of the Council should reply on 
their behalf.

Page 59

Agenda Item 16



This page is intentionally left blank



Notice of Motion

Full Council

19th September 2019

Proposed By: Councillor Sir Ron Watson CBE

Seconded By: Councillor Tony Brough

Democratic Changes to Council Procedures and Constitution

Council Procedures Public Involvement

Many Members of the Council are becoming increasingly concerned at what they 
consider to be a Democratic Deficit in the workings of the Council and believe that now 
is the appropriate time to bring forward suggestions as to how this can be addressed.

The Council Meetings

There is a significant gap between Council Meetings where this year there was a Full 
Council Meeting on 25 April with the Council not meeting again until 18 July.

There was an Adjourned Council Meeting reconvened for 16 May to agree the 
administration for the year but no questions or no Notice of Motion was allowed.

The latter two issues should be incorporated in the future into this meeting and 
recommendations brought forward as to how such a long gap can be avoided in the 
future.

Questions at the Full Council Meetings

Sefton should now adopt the policy that applies in many Councils whereby Councillors 
can ask questions of the Leader and Cabinet Members without notice at Full Council 
Meetings.

The period for this section should not exceed 30 minutes.

The Cabinet System 

The experience of Members indicates that these meetings are very perfunctionary and 
on average last between 5 and 10 minutes.

Members of the Council have confirmed however that Cabinet Members meet in private 
for up to 3 hours and take the decisions at this time.

Page 61

Agenda Item 17



A system that allows 10 minutes for Elected Members, the public and the press and 
media to attend when set against 3 hours for the same agenda discussed in private is 
clearly not Democratic.

The Membership of the Cabinet should include on an Ex Officio basis the Leaders of 
any Political Party with a Membership of more than 5 Councillors and they should be 
entitled to all the papers.

These Ex Officio Members would have the right to speak at the Cabinet but would not 
have a vote.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees 

The policy of the current administration only to allow Members of their Party to act as 
Chair is clearly against the spirit of the O and S function.

Sefton should therefore follow the example of many other majority-controlled Councils 
and ensure that to bring about an enhanced and more independent role of O and S, the 
Chairmanship should be allocated on a proportionate basis to Members of the other 
Parties.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members as a matter of course should have 
access to ‘Exempt’ reports on which Cabinet Members have subsequently made a 
decision.

Elected Member Database

Sefton has many Members with a wide range of experience in all areas.

Councils should maintain a database of this valuable experience and use it as one of 
the criteria when appointing Members to Non-Political Outside Bodies who ask for the 
Council to be represented on their Boards and Committees.

Commercial Confidentiality

There remains very great concern over many aspects of certain decisions that are taken 
in secret using the above as the reason.

The Council should seek Legal advice to set up a Special Body based on the criteria 
adopted on a National Basis by the Privy Council in order that all Leading Members 
from all Parties are aware of the background to any decision made.

This should stress that the information given is to be held confidential and some 
consideration as to sanctions for those who deliberately break this criteria should be 
involved.

Training

The complex nature of some of the commercial transactions being entered into does 
mean that there is a need for training of Elected Members in an area that they will not 

Page 62

Agenda Item 17



be particularly familiar with and there are currently few Member who have a financial 
background that would enable them to claim to be in a position to make valued 
judgements on financial commitments that may be controversial.

As a consequence, the Council will embark upon a Structed Training Programme 
starting with Cabinet to enhance their knowledge in this critical area.

Press and Media

There should be no public announcements on policy issues taken in advance of Elected 
Members being informed except in most extreme cases.

The Council now acknowledges that issuing press statements when Elected Members 
are subsequently asked to comment by the Press/Media but on which they have no 
knowledge is counter-productive.

Public Involvement and Consultation 

The decision by the Council to introduce ‘Community Chats’ has clearly proved not to 
be a success.

The Council should, therefore, have the maturity to admit that a serious mistake was 
made in abolishing the Southport Area Committee which provided a well understood 
Forum enabling the public to raise matters both individually and collectively, receive 
updates from other bodies such as the Police, benefit from presentations by other 
organisations and be able to see directly the Decision-Making Process involving 
Councillors at the Meeting.

Southport Town Council

The decision not to allow a very preliminary start on a Consultation process to ascertain 
whether or not there was a public support for the formation in due course of a Town 
Council has not been well received.

The Leader of the Council has conceded that Parish and Town Councils work well 
throughout the rest of Sefton but will offer no explanation as to why he has had his 
Members vote against what is no more than a preliminary investigation with no 
commitment.

The decision needs to be reversed and Sefton should now prepare the appropriate 
administrative process to start the consultation process with the public.

Page 63

Agenda Item 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Revenue and Capital Budget Update - Treasury Management Outturn 2018/19
	8 Revenue and Capital Budget Update 2019/20 - Revised Capital Allocations
	9 Local Government Act 1972 – Section 85 - Attendance at Meetings
	11 Matters dealt with in accordance with Rule 29 (Special Urgency) and Rule 46 (Waiving Call-In) of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution
	12 Motion submitted by Councillor Pugh - Brexit
	13 Motion submitted by Councillor Halsall - NJC Pay to Council
	14 Motion submitted by Councillor Byrom - Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority
	15 Motion submitted by Councillor Carragher - Dog Poop - A Public Hazard
	16 Motion Submitted by Councillor Brough - Questions on Notice at Full Council
	17 Motion Submitted by Councillor Sir Ron Watson CBE - Democratic Changes to Council Procedures and Constitution

